
MINUTES 
PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE 

MARCH 23, 1999                                         9:00 A.M.              SCOTT HEYMAN CONFERENCE ROOM 
 
PRESENT: C. Evans, B. Blanchard, G. Totman, M. Lane, T. Joseph 
 
STAFF: R. Teasley, OAR; J. Miller, Fire, Disaster and EMS Coordinator; L.  Shurtleff, Assistant Fire Disaster  
  and EMS Coordinator; W. Skinner, Public Information Coordinator; J. Hughes, Assigned Counsel  
  Coordinator; P. Meskill, Sheriff; J. Beach, Stop-DWI Coordinator; G. Hammer, Criminal Justice   
  Systems Administrator; K. Drew, Administration; K. West, Deputy County Administrator;  
 
GUESTS: B. Wilbur, Ithaca City Fire Chief; J. Vitale, New York State Police; D. Robertson, Dryden Police   
  Department; L. Withiam, E911 Operations Committee 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
 The meeting opened at 12:00 p.m. 
 
E911 PRESENTATION 
 
 Mr. Withiam stated the E911 Operations Committee started a self-evaluation study over a year ago and over 21 
meeting were held to work on this; the Police Subcommittee and the Fire and EMS Committee were involved and  this 
information was presented to the Public Safety Committee in September 1998.   He stated that the 911 program was 
implemented with the thirty-five cent surcharge and to date this has been very successful; however, there have been 
concerns that include space issues, supervision and future funding.   A handout on Enhanced 911 Funding - A Summary 
was distributed and is filed with the original minutes.   
 
 Mr. Withiam stated that the County has been able to save millions of dollars by having and maintaining its own 
database.  The decision to use laptop computers reduced manpower, saved money and has been very effective.  He stated 
that since implementation, there have been 1.1 million transmissions over the system and this has taken a toll on the 
computers and more maintenance is  needed and this will require additional funding.  He stated that the Board of 
Representatives passed a resolution recently supporting the increase of the 911 surcharge to $1.00.  He stated that funding 
will also be an issue in other areas of the program including centralization.  Mr. Withiam  stated that the E911 Operations 
Committee has met and it is their recommendation that centralization is needed.  He noted the they have the support of the 
Sheriff, Ithaca City Police Department and the Ithaca City Fire Department.  He noted that there may be obstacles within 
each of these departments, but these can be worked out. 
 
 Mr. Shurtleff stated that there was discussion about the supervision of dispatchers downtown from the 
Coordinator's office.  He stated a review has been done on the number of calls and the volume into the call center, 
currently there is enough staff to handle the number, but they need to be used efficiently.  He stated that it is difficult to 
provide supervision five miles away from the call center.  He stated that the staff works well and exercise sound 
judgement but there is no guarantee that this will always happen.  He noted a case in Syracuse where a dispatcher had 
fallen asleep and it resulted in a lawsuit in Onondaga County.  He stated a lack of supervision in this case also played a 
part.  He stated Tompkins County isn't immune to similar situations, and noted he would like to move toward the 
centralization of services so adequate supervision can be provided. 
 
 Mr. Miller discussed the current space housing the call center and spoke about the upgrades that have taken place 
over the last 30 years.  He stated that while the space was adequate in the 1970's, there have been upgrades and additional 
services added and the call center is running out of space.  He stated that at present equipment has to be stacked to fit in 
the space and if the County upgrades to the 800 MHz  communications system, this will require a significant amount of 
space that isn't available at the current location.  He stated that several locations have been considered including expansion 
at the Coordinator's office.   He stated that approximately 4,200 feet is needed for the centralization.   Expansion would 
take place on the back of existing garage and this also goes with the flow of the building.   He stated that this also seems  



Public Safety Committee 
March 23, 1999 

 2

 
to be the most economical choice because of the existing equipment that is at the location and it would also allow for staff 
currently there to be used to help out during peak times. 
 
 Mr. Lane asked what the costs would be if a different location was chosen.  Mr. Miller stated that there is 
presently 5,000 feet of space being used at the Coordinator's office, there is need for 10,000 feet total.  He stated that a 
new building would also require a generator system as well as other costs.   
 
 Mr. Blanchard asked what the cost estimate is for the addition.  Mr. Withiam stated it will cost approximately 
$425,000 for the building.  He stated that some of the equipment will be moved and some would need to be replaced.  Mr. 
Miller stated he spoke with the County Finance Director and there will be approximately $20,000 per year that can be 
used in revenues to help pay off the building.  He stated the increased revenue is a result of the increased 911 surcharge as 
well as the bond payoff. 
 
 Mr. Joseph asked how this will tie in with the 800 MHz system.  Mr. Miller stated that the consoles will be bought 
and will be used with the new system if it is approved.  Mr. Lane asked if a back-up location is needed for 911.  Mr. 
Miller stated that the back-up location at the Sheriff's Department will remain unchanged and the staff would be moved to 
that location if needed.  
 
 Mr. Evans stated that the centralized dispatch system and the 800 MHz systems are different issues, the most 
efficient system needs to be provided.   He stated that the 800 MHz system may not be approved, but by upgrading the 
existing equipment, this equipment would be upgradable and compatible with the 800 MHz system.   The existing 
consoles are not upgradable and can no longer be purchased. 
 
 Mr. Joseph asked how costly it would be to make the basic move.  Mr. Miller stated that it won't be as difficult if 
we purchase new consoles.  To move the old equipment would more costly because it would need to be disassembled and 
rebuilt.   Mr. Miller stated that the equipment can be purchased without making a decision on the new County 
communications system. 
 
 Mr. Joseph asked if  it would be better to build  a new center and move the old equipment and then buy the new 
equipment later.  He asked if  the new system and centralization weren't being considered if we would still need to 
purchase new consoles.  Mr. Miller explained that this would be more costly, because the current equipment is not 
computer  driven, and it is not possible to purchase the existing consoles any longer.  Mr. Joseph stated that a decision 
should not be made on centralization until a decision is made on the purchase of consoles. 
 
 Mr. Joseph asked how dispatching presently works.  Mr. Miller stated that a call comes in to the dispatcher 
downtown and is then transfered to the appropriate authorities to handle the call.  With the new system, the dispatcher 
stays on the line with the original call and the other parties that would be needed for the call are in the same room.  He 
stated that some people get nervous when they are being transferred because contact with the dispatcher is broken briefly.  
Mr. Joseph asked if the dispatchers will also be handling police calls instead of just fire and EMS calls.  Mr. Evans stated 
that County dispatchers will not dispatch for New York State Police, but the closest car concept is being used.  Sheriff's 
department calls will be handled and so will Ithaca City Police calls once that agency makes a commitment. 
 
 Mr. Withiam noted that when centralization is completed it will be possible to cross train everyone to the same 
level regardless of the call type.  He stated that the Operations Committee has been studying this for over a year and 
centralization is the recommendation being made.    He stated at this time they would like direction from the Board.  Mr. 
Evans stated that if the concept of centralization is accepted, the Committee will need to know what the existing operation 
is, the changes that will be made as well as a budget.  Mr. Withiam stated that if the concept is accepted the Operations 
Committee will pursue the other aspects. 
 
 It was Moved by Mr. Lane, seconded by Mr. Totman and unanimously adopted by voice vote to accept the 
concept of centralization of the E911 Dispatch Center and request the E911 Operations Committee begin preparing 
budgets for this process for review by the Committee.  The concept of the centralization is not site specific.   



Public Safety Committee 
March 23, 1999 

 3

 
 Mr. Blanchard asked that the E911 Committee integrate follow-up with the Facilities and Infrastructure 
Committee.   
 
 
SPACE COMMITTEE UPDATE 
 
 Mr. Joseph stated that the Space Committee visited the jails in Wayne Tioga Counties to see more modern 
facilities.  He stated that each was designed and run differently and it was nice to see how the different designs function.  
He stated that he was particularly interested in the way the Tioga County facility is run.  Mr. Lane stated that Wayne 
County had difficulties with their dispatch center when using Bell Atlantic's database and doing updates.  He stated that 
Tioga County had a system that calls elderly people daily to make sure they are alright.  He stated he would like s similar 
program in Tompkins County. 
 
ASSIGNED COUNSEL UPDATE 
 
 Ms. Hughes distributed the 1998 annual report.  This is on file with the original minutes.  She stated that $754,000 
was mandated for 1998 and the department was $100,000 under for the year.  She stated that this is the third year in a row 
for savings, but noted that there were no high profile crimes during those times.  She stated that the numbers in family and 
city court have reversed with the highest numbers coming out of family court.   She stated approximately 42 attorneys are 
participating in the program, assignments are up-to-date with a more concentrated group taking cases.  Mr. Evans asked if 
those attorneys leaving the program are the experienced ones.  Ms. Hughes reported that four have left the program, two 
were experienced and two inexperienced.  She stated that her office is awaiting the Court of Appeals decision on attorney 
participation in Drug Court.    
 
 Ms. Blanchard asked if there is a reason for the higher number of family court cases.  Ms. Hughes reported that 
neglect cases have increased dramatically, but other than that the Law Guardian's office cannot say why there has been 
such a high increase. 
 
 Ms. Hughes stated that the goals and objectives for her office for 1999 include : 
 

 Purchasing equipment including a postage meter, voice-mail and a getting a dedicated phone line for the 
 computer.  The long-term goal for this area is to be able to purchase or obtain funding for, a database that 
 is custom designed for the Assigned Counsel Program. 
 
 Become more familiar with the budget process and the information needed to communicate effectively to 
 the Public Safety Committee.   
 
 Provide clarification of Assigned Counsel's role in the court system and keep outside agencies and 
 committees well informed. 

 
ASSIGNED COUNSEL VERSUS PUBLIC DEFENDER 
 
 Mr. Evans explained that this was discussed briefly at last month's Committee meeting as well as at a Criminal 
Justice Advisory Board meeting and it was pointed out that there is a need to have an increase in payment for public 
defenders.  He stated that the report done previously on this topic has been distributed to all Committee members and he 
would like to take that report and update it for a salary increase to see what the effect will be on the budget and then 
compare the Assigned Counsel Program to a public defender's office.    Mr. Evans asked Mr. Lane if, as an attorney, he 
would be able to provide the committee with an appropriate fee for an attorney.  Mr. Lane stated that he does not practice 
criminal law and it is hard to relate what attorneys would charge in private practice versus what they earn with the 
County.  He stated he believes it is important to look at what the proposals are for the increase in the community.  Ms. 
Hughes will obtain this information and also look at what Albany is suggesting as an increase and place that in the report. 



Public Safety Committee 
March 23, 1999 

 4

 
 Mr. Evans stated that he was approached by a local attorney about the increase and stated he would also like to 
explore the possibility of video arraignments at the same time.  Ms. Hughes asked if there is anywhere else in the state 
that does video arraignments and where the funding would come from.  Mr. Evans stated that there are five or six counties 
approved to do them, but none of them uses it.  He stated that if a program like this was possible, he would like to try to 
obtain a grant to make it work.   Mr. Meskill stated that not only do you need attorney participation, you need a county 
plan.  He suggested talking to the Criminal Justice Advisory Board about this possibility.  Mr. Beach stated that he will 
see that a subcommittee gets this task. 
 
STOP-DWI UPDATE 
 
 Mr. Beach reported that arrests for the Selective Enforcement officer have remained the same, but the number of 
arrests coming from the road patrol have been higher.  He stated that the Sheriff is restructuring the rotation of that patrol 
and this will allow Officer San Angelo time on other shifts.   
 
 Mr. Meskill stated that he would be interested in seeing a comparison with other agencies in the County for 
arrests. 
 
PROBATION DEPARTMENT 
 
 ELECTRONIC MONITORING 
 
 Ms. Leinthall was not in attendance.  No report was given. 
 
OAR 
  
 Ms. Teasley provided a report on the bail fund program.  This is filed with the original minutes.  She stated that 
when her office calculates days saved in the jail they can only use the number of cases that have been completed.  She 
stated that 1998 was a busy year and there were more people to see and more activity.  She stated that her department is 
working on getting all of their data in to the Access program and noted that the Human Services Coalition received a grant 
and provide two new computers to OAR.  She stated that OAR is working with CISNET to become an active participant. 
 
SHERIFF’S DEPARTMENT 
 
 MISSION AND VISION STATEMENT FOR THE SHERIFF’S DEPARTMENT 
 
 Mr. Evans stated that the Committee should review the mission and vision and submit any suggestions to Mr. 
Meskill.  The Committee will approve this at the April meeting. 
 
 LETTERS FROM COMMISSION OF CORRECTION 
 
 Mr. Meskill reported that two letters have been received from the Commission of Correction.  One  discusses the 
walk-through metal detector  and the need to have it repaired or replaced.  He stated that this detector is used when 
entering the jail and has been inoperable since before he took office in January.  He will speak with Mr. Stevens at the jail 
about the possibility of getting this fixed.  He reported that at this time, hand-held wands are being used to check people 
when they enter the jail.   
 
 Mr. Meskill reported that another letter received from the Commission is the granting of a variance for 26 
additional beds at the jail.  He stated that traditional bunk beds will be purchased and used throughout the dorms .  He 
stated this is being done on a suggestion from corrections officers that by using them in the dorms it will free up floor 
space.  He stated additional beds will also be purchased and used in the cell blocks.  He stated with the variance the total 
population at the jail can be 117.    He stated that mattresses, blankets, and pillows also need to be ordered and noted that 
it may be necessary to use some of the $150,000 approved for board-outs to recover these costs in the fall. 



Public Safety Committee 
March 23, 1999 

 5

  
 BUDGET ADJUSTMENT 
 
 It was Moved by Mr. Totman, seconded by Mr. Joseph and unanimously adopted by voice vote to approve the 
following budget adjustment 
  
 REVENUE:  A3113.42626  Drug Forfeiture  $3,782 
    A3113.42626  Drug Forfeiture      778 
 
APPROPRIATION:  A3113.52206  Computer Equipment $3,782 
    A3113.52206  Computer Software             778 
 
 
Explanation:  Monies needed to update computer equipment because the current equipment is inadequate. 
 
 Mr. Meskill stated that the new patrol cars are in and have been outfitted.  He stated that two of the cars are at the 
Fire Coordinator's office getting the computers installed.  He stated that the Employees Union at the Sheriff's Department  
and Stop-DWI contributed money toward the DWI and DARE cars.   A press conference is tentatively scheduled for 
Friday.  He stated that a car inspection report has been implemented.  Specific deputies will be assigned to each car and it 
will be their responsibility to make sure that their cars are in working order and in the proper condition daily.  He reported 
that Deputy Joe Manning has been hired and interviews are being conducted to fill another opening in the department.   
 
 Mr. Meskill stated that a new rotation will begin on the DWI patrol.  He stated that six deputies have volunteered 
to do the patrol and he stated that he hopes this will be result in high productivity and will get the majority of the 
department involved in enforcement. 
 
 Ms. Blanchard asked if Mr. Meskill will attend a Facilities and Infrastructure Committee and give a presentation 
on traffic.  
 
 JAIL REPORT 
 
 The jail statistics were distributed.  These are filed with the original minutes. 
 
 BUDGET TRANSFERS - SHERIFF - INFORMATION ONLY 
 
 FROM:   3151.54319  Program Supplies $100 
     
 TO:   3151.54412  Travel and Training $100 
 
 
Explanation:  This line item was omitted from the 1999 budget. 
 
 FROM:   3110.54412  Travel and Training $85 
 
 TO:   3110.54416  Membership Dues $85 
 
 
Explanation:  Monies needed to cover membership dues.  This line item was omitted from the 1999 budget. 
 
 FROM:   3153.554306  Automotive Supplies $2,500 
 
 TO:   3150.54412  Travel and Training $2,500 
 



Public Safety Committee 
March 23, 1999 

 6

 
Explanation:  This line item was omitted from the 1999 budget. 
 
 FROM:   3153.554306  Automotive Supplies $2,500 
 
 TO:   3150.54412  Travel and Training $2,500 
 
 
Explanation:  This line item was omitted from the 1999 budget. 
 
BUDGET TRANSFERS - DISTRICT ATTORNEY - INFORMATION ONLY 
 
 FROM:   1165.54442  Professional Services      $275.71 
 
 TO:   1165.54425  Equipment Maintenance      $275.71 
 
Explanation:  Unexpected machine repair. 
 
RESOLUTION NO.     – APPROPRIATION FROM CONTINGENT FUND FOR THE BOARDING OF   
       PRISONERS – JAIL 
 

It was Moved by Mr. Totman, seconded by Mr. Lane and unanimously adopted by voice vote. 
 
WHEREAS, the Board appropriated up to $150,000 in the Contingency Fund for the purpose of boarding of 

prisoners when it adopted its 1999 budget, and  
WHEREAS, the Sheriff’s Department has not boarded out any prisoners since the 15th of January, now therefore 

be it 
RESOLVED, on recommendation of the Public Safety and Budget and Quality Planning Committees, That the 

Finance Director is directed to appropriate $7,269 from A1190.5440, Contingent Fund, to cover the cost of boarding bills 
and actual housing expenses for January, 1999. 
 
APPROPRIATION 

 
FROM:  A1990.54400      Contingent Fund      $7,269 
TO:        A3150.54469  Boarding of Prisoners      $7,269 
 

BEGINNING BALANCE AS APPROPRIATED $150,000 
 
Tioga County (1/1-1/15/99)   $3,750 
Wyoming County (1/1-1/7/99)   $2,160 
Yates County (1/7-1/11/99)   $1,359 
TOTAL EXPENSES    $7,269 
 
BALANCE     $142,731 
 

SEQR ACTION:  TYPE II-20 
 
MINUTES  
 
 It was Moved by Mr. Totman, seconded by Ms. Blanchard and unanimously adopted by voice vote to approve the 
minutes of February 2, February 23, and March 2, 1999, as submitted. 
 
 



Public Safety Committee 
March 23, 1999 

 7

 
APPOINTMENTS 
 
 It was Moved by Ms. Blanchard, seconded by Mr. Lane and unanimously adopted by voice vote to enter into 
executive session at 2:38 p.m. to discuss appointments.  It was Moved by Mr. Joseph, seconded by Mr. Totman and 
unanimously adopted by voice vote to return to open session at 2:41 p.m.   
 
 It was Moved by Mr. Joseph, seconded by Ms. Blanchard and unanimously adopted by voice vote to approve the 
appointment of Larry Bratton as an At-large Representative to the Advisory Board on Indigent Representation for a three 
year term expiring December 31, 1999. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 The meeting adjourned at 2:41 p.m.  The next meeting will be held April 27, 1999 at Noon in the Scott Heyman 
Conference Room. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted by Jennifer Luu, Administrative Assistant, Board of Representative's office. 


	MARCH 23, 1999                                         9:00 A.M.              SCOTT HEYMAN CONFERENCE ROOM
	CALL TO ORDER
	APPROPRIATION
	BEGINNING BALANCE AS APPROPRIATED $150,000

